
AGENDA 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION 

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, April 18, 2022 

5:00 P.M. 
   

Page 1 of 1 
 

 

1. Call to Order   
2. Roll Call  
3. Invocation and Pledge  
4. Announcements  
5. Approval of the Agenda  
6. Public Input  
7. Consent Agenda  

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting and Work Session held March 21, 2022 
• Executive Session held March 21, 2022 

b. Approve 2022 Georgia Municipal Association (GMA) Annual Convention and Training 
c. Approve Annual Preventive Maintenance Contract for Lift Stations 
d. Approve Updated 2022 Lease for Dawsonville History Museum 

 

8. Employee Recognition 
9. Proclamation: Administrative Professionals Day, April 27, 2022 

 

BUSINESS 
 

10. ZA-C2200130:  City of Dawsonville and Shiloh and Shiloh, LLC has petitioned a zoning amendment for TMP 
D02 005 and D02 006, Located at 41 and 68 Dan Roper Lane from PCS (Planned Conservation Subdivision) 
to R6 (Multiple-Family Residential).  Public Hearing Dates:  Planning Commission on March 14, 2022, and City 
Council on March 21, 2022.  City Council for a decision on April 18, 2022. 
 

11. ANX-C2100043 and ZA-C2100043: Allen Street Properties, LLC and B & K Turner Family, LLP have 
petitioned to annex into the city limits of Dawsonville tract 2 with 32.937 acres (amended application) tract 
known as a portion of TMP 093 004 001, located at Perimeter Road, with a request to rezone from County 
Zoning of RSR (Residential Sub Rural) and RA (Restricted Agriculture) to City Zoning of R3 (Single Family 
Residential). Public Hearing Dates: Planning Commission on September 13, 2021 and City Council on 
October 4, 2021. City Council for a decision on October 18, 2021 – Tabled from March 21, 2022 

 

12. ZA-C2200119:  SDH Atlanta, LLC has petitioned a zoning amendment for TMP 084 004 and 084 005; Located 
at 1694 and 1768 Highway 9 South from R1 (Restricted Single-Family Residential District) to R3 (Single-Family 
Residential).  Public Hearing Dates: Planning Commission on February 14, 2022, and City Council on March 
7, 2022.  City Council for a decision on March 21, 2022. – Tabled from March 21, 2022 
 

13. Letter of Commitment to Appalachian Regional Commission 
14. Storm Water Infrastructure Maintenance and Expenses Agreement 
15. Main Street Park Pavilion Rental Increase 
16. American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Grant Funds Designation 

 

WORK SESSION 
 

17. Impact Fee Study Discussion 
18. Consideration of Resolution: Temporary Moratorium on Issuance of Development and Building Permits 

 

STAFF REPORTS 
 

19. Bob Bolz, City Manager 
20. Robin Gazaway, Finance Administrator 

 

     EXECUTIVE SESSION, IF NEEDED 
       

     ADJOURNMENT   

 
The next scheduled City Council meeting is Monday, May 2, 2022 

 
Those persons with disabilities who require reasonable accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or 
participate in this meeting or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting, should contact the Clerk at 
Dawsonville City Hall at 706-265-3256 at least two (2) business days prior to the meeting. 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                    CONSENT AGENDA           

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  04/18/2022     
   
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 

 
   CONSIDERATION AND APPROVAL OF ITEMS BELOW; SEE ATTACHED 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS  
 

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting and Work Session held March 21, 2022 
• Executive Session held March 21, 2022 

b. Approve 2022 Georgia Municipal Association (GMA) Annual Convention and 
Training 

c. Approve Annual Preventive Maintenance Contract for Lift Stations 
d. Approve Updated 2022 Lease for Dawsonville History Museum 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #       7     
 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                       APPROVE MINUTES    

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  04/18/2022     
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
     TO APPROVE THE MINUTES FROM: 

 
• REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION HELD MARCH 21, 2022 
• EXECUTIVE SESSION HELD MARCH 21, 2022 

 
 
 

 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

 
 
     
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
           
  AMEND OR APPROVE AS PRESENTED 
 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
     REQUESTED BY:  Beverly Banister, City Clerk    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

 AGENDA ITEM #   7a      
 

 

 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION 

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, March 21, 2022 

5:00 P.M. 
   

Page 1 of 4 
 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Mike Eason called the meeting to order at 5:00 pm. 
 

2. ROLL CALL: Present were Councilmember John Walden, Councilmember Mark French, 
Councilmember Caleb Phillips, Councilmember William Illg, City Attorney Kevin Tallant, City Manager 
Bob Bolz, City Clerk Beverly Banister, Public Works Director Trampas Hansard, Utilities Operation 
Manager Jacob Barr, Planning Director David Picklesimer and Finance Administrator Robin 
Gazaway. 

 

3. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE:  Invocation and pledge were led by Councilmember French.   
 

4. ANNOUNCEMENTS:  Mayor Eason reported the Farmer’s Market season will open on Saturday, 
April 30th and the first Food Truck Friday will be on May 6th.  He also stated there are quite a few City 
initiated zoning requests on the agenda that are being done to correct some zoning map errors.  

 

5. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA:  Motion to approve the agenda as presented made by J. Walden; 
second by M. French.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.   

6. PUBLIC INPUT:  None 
 

7. CONSENT AGENDA:  Motion to approve the consent agenda for the following items (a and b) made 
by J. Walden; second by C. Phillips.  Vote carried unanimously in favor. 

 

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting held March 7, 2022 
• Executive Session held March 7, 2022 

b. Approve Appointments of Dawsonville History Museum Board of Directors 
•       Cheryl Capwell – 3 Year Term:  01/01/2022 – 12/31/2024 
•       James Bearden – 3 Year Term: 01/01/2022 – 12/31/2024 
•       Calvin Byrd – 3 Year Term:   01/01/2022 – 12/31/2024 
•       Faye Abercrombie – 3 Year Term: 01/01/2022 – 12/31/2024 
•       Scott Adams – 3 Year Term:  01/01/2022 – 12/31/2024 
•       Cody Dinsmore – 1 Year Term: 01/01/2022 – 12/31/2022 
•       Gordon Pirkle – 1 Year Term: 01/01/2022 – 12/31/2022 
•       David Sosebee – 1 Year Term: 01/01/2022 – 12/31/2022 

 

8. EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION: The Mayor and Council presented awards to David Schuette for the 
February 2022 Employee of the Month and a one-year service award to Tony Seabolt.  

 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 

9. ZA-C2200130:  Shiloh and Shiloh, LLC has petitioned a zoning amendment for TMP D02 005 and 
D02 006, Located at 41 and 68 Dan Roper Lane from PCS (Planned Conservation Subdivision) to 
R6 (Multiple-Family Residential).  Public Hearing Dates:  Planning Commission on March 14, 2022, 
and City Council on March 21, 2022.  City Council for a decision on April 18, 2022. 
 

Planning Director Picklesimer read the zoning amendment request.   
 

Motion to open the public hearing made by M. French; second by W. Illg.  Vote carried unanimously 
in favor.  Mayor Eason conducted the public hearing; no one spoke in favor of or in opposition to the 
zoning amendment.  Motion to close the public hearing made by M. French; second by J. Walden.  
Vote carried unanimously in favor.  

 

BUSINESS 
 

10. MODIFICATION REQUEST FOR IMPROVEMENT TO WINNER’S CIRCLE:  Cindy Elliott reported 
she is trying to reach Duane Roof who has the blueprints for the museum but has not received a 
response; she asked the Council if they had any information on how to reach him.  The engineers she 
spoke with would need to review the blueprints prior to determining the integrity of the Winner’s Circle 
area in front of the museum. 
 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION 

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, March 21, 2022 

5:00 P.M. 
   

Page 2 of 4 
 

Motion to table the item to the May 2, 2022 City Council meeting made by W. Illg; second by M. 
French.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  
 

11. EVENT PERMIT FEE WAIVER REQUEST FROM DAWSONVILLE HISTORY MUSEUM:  Motion to 
approve waiving the $50.00 event permit fee for the Greater Atlanta Auto Auction made by M. French; 
second by C. Phillips.  Councilmember Illg stated his concern about setting a precedent with other 
non-profits asking for fee waivers; clarification was made that fee waiver is appropriate since the City 
is co-sponsoring the event. Vote carried unanimously in favor.  
 

12. SPECIAL EVENT ALCOHOL PERMIT REQUEST – GREATER ATLANTA AUTO AUCTION, APRIL 
23, 2022:  Motion to approve the Special Event Alcohol Permit for the April 23, 2022 Greater Atlanta 
Auto Auction as long as the area to purchase and carry the alcohol will be contained with fencing and 
deputies are present made by M. French; second by C. Phillips.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  

 

13. PERMIT FEES WAIVER REQUEST FROM DAWSON COUNTY GOVERNMENT:  Motion to approve 
waiving the $300 permit fees for Dawson County related to the security system upgrade to the Law 
Enforcement Center, Detention Center and the Government center made by W. Illg; second by C. 
Phillips.  Vote carried unanimously in favor. 

 

14. MAPLE HILL DRIVE DETENTION POND:  Attorney Tallant reported on the meeting held with 
residents on Maple Hill Drive; those who attended understand the issue and the costs involved and 
are asking the City for assistance to resolve it.  Attorney Tallant provided some options to the Council.  
He reminded the Council the residents on Maple Hill Drive do not have an HOA managing the 
detention pond which was allowed to happen under a prior administration. 

 

Motion made by M. French for the City to repair and cleanout the detention pond this time with the 
property owner’s knowledge of their responsibility to maintain it in the future or have to face a lien 
placed on their property by the City for the cost; motion died for lack of a second.    
 

Motion to enter into an agreement with property owners on Maple Hill Drive to assess a pro rata based 
cost estimate and an administrative fee for the ongoing and future maintenance of the detention pond 
in which the City would collect and maintain the funding and property owners who refuse to enter into 
the agreement will have a lien placed on their property for their pro rata based cost of the ongoing 
and future maintenance of the detention pond made by J. Walden; second by C. Phillips.  Vote carried 
two in favor (Walden, Phillips) with one recused (Illg) and one opposed (French). 

 

15. GEORGIA STATE PATOL RECRUITING DAY, MAY 11, 2022:  Motion to approve the event and to 
allow use of the Farmer’s Market at no charge made by W. Illg; second by M. French.  Vote carried 
unanimously in favor.   
 

16. ZA-C2200058: Everett Management, LLC has petitioned a zoning amendment for TMP D03 010, 
Located at 239 Hwy 9 North from HB (Highway Business) to CBD (Central Business District). Public 
Hearing Dates:  Planning Commission on December 13, 2021 and City Council on March 7, 2022.  
City Council for a decision on March 21, 2022.   

 

Motion to approve the zoning amendment request as presented made by W.  Illg; second by C. 
Phillips.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  
 

17. VAR-C2200060:  Everett Management. LLC has petitioned to eliminate the 30’ foot buffer along the 
rear and east property lines and reduce the 40’ foot setback to 17 feet along the East property line 
and 20’ feet along the rear property line for TMP D03 010, Located at 239 Hwy 9 North.  Public 
Hearing:  Planning Commission on December 13, 2021 and City Council on March 7, 2022.  City 
Council for a decision on March 21, 2022.  (Postponed by Planning Commission until February 14, 
2022.)   

Motion to approve the variance request as presented made by W. Illg; second by M. French.  Vote 
carried unanimously in favor.  

 

18. ZA-C2200111: City of Dawsonville and Mike Eason has petitioned a zoning amendment for TMP 
092 020 002, Located at 374 Burt Creek Rd from R1 (Restricted Single-Family Residential District) 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION 

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, March 21, 2022 

5:00 P.M. 
   

Page 3 of 4 
 

to R3 (Single-Family Residential). Public Hearing Dates:  Planning Commission on February 14, 
2022, and City Council on March 7, 2022.  City Council for a decision on March 21, 2022.   
 

Mayor Eason recused himself.  Motion to approve the zoning amendment request as presented made 
by C. Phillips; second by W. Illg.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  
 

19. ZA-C2200112: City of Dawsonville and Farmington Woods, LP has petitioned a zoning amendment 
for TMP 093 041, Located at 34 Farmington Circle from R3 (Single-Family Residential) to R6 
(Multiple-Family Residential District). Public Hearing Dates:  Planning Commission on February 14, 
2022, and City Council on March 7, 2022.  City Council for a decision on March 21, 2022.   
 

Motion to approve the zoning amendment request as presented made by C. Phillips; second by J. 
Walden.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  
 

20. ZA-C2200119:  SDH Atlanta, LLC has petitioned a zoning amendment for TMP 084 004 and 084 
005; Located at 1694 and 1768 Highway 9 South from R1 (Restricted Single-Family Residential 
District) to R3 (Single-Family Residential).  Public Hearing Dates: Planning Commission on February 
14, 2022, and City Council on March 7, 2022.  City Council for a decision on March 21, 2022. 
 

Planning Director Picklesimer read the request and told the City Council the applicant has agreed to 
reduce the number of lots to 220, increase the buffer along the Apple Ridge Subdivision property 
(South side) to a total of 100 feet and increase the stream buffers to a total of 75 feet and will build 
the subdivision in Phases.  Picklesimer clarified the stream buffer will be a 50 foot undisturbed buffer 
with a 25 foot impervious setback and the south side buffer alongside Apple Ridge will be a 75 foot 
undisturbed buffer with a 25 foot planted buffer.   
 

Mayor Eason stated the Council only recently received the updated concept plan and they would 
need time to review it and discuss as needed with staff.   
 

Motion to table the item until the April 18, 2022 City Council meeting made by M. French; second by 
W. Illg.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  

 

21. HPMA-C2200124:  Allen Street Properties, LLC has petitioned a Historic Preservation Map 
Amendment for a portion of TMP 092B 021, Located at Land Lot 378, 439 and 440 4th District; 
within the Historic District of Dawsonville.  Public Hearing Dates:  Historic Preservation Commission 
on Monday, February 28, 2022, and City Council on March 7, 2022.  City Council for a decision on 
March 21, 2022. 
 

Motion to approve the Historic Preservation Map Amendment to remove the Historic District overlay 
for a portion of the property as recommended by the Historic Preservation Commission made by C. 
Phillips; second by M. French.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  
 

22. ANX-C2100043 and ZA-C2100043: Allen Street Properties, LLC and B & K Turner Family, LLP 
have petitioned to annex into the city limits of Dawsonville tract 2 with 32.937 acres (amended 
application) tract known as a portion of TMP 093 004 001, located at Perimeter Road, with a request 
to rezone from County Zoning of RSR (Residential Sub Rural) and RA (Restricted Agriculture) to 
City Zoning of R3 (Single Family Residential). Public Hearing Dates: Planning Commission on 
September 13, 2021 and City Council on October 4, 2021. City Council for a decision on October 
18, 2021 – Tabled from January 20, 2022 
 

Motion to postpone the item until the May 16, 2022 City Council meeting in order to further examine 
access points and resolve the water and sewer issues made by J. Walden; second by M. French.  
Councilmember Phillips stated he is not against the project but would like to have the water and 
sewer issues resolved first and he would also like to see the road line up with Allen Street so its not 
offset.   
 

Michael Turner spoke with the Council regarding the road lining up with Allen Street and stated it 
would have to be a County road in the City and was not a viable option.  He would like to see the 
Council vote on the matter this evening with the conditions the Council desires to have so he could 
start the development.  Attorney Tallant stated the annexation and zoning could be approved with 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION 

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, March 21, 2022 

5:00 P.M. 
   

Page 4 of 4 
 

conditions.  Councilmember Phillips stated he would rather have the issues worked out first; 
Attorney Tallant agreed that would be his preference as well.  Michael Turner then asked if the 
Council would consider moving the decision to the meeting in April instead of waiting until May.  
Attorney Tallant stated it was possible to have the issues resolved but no guarantee could be made.  
 

Motion by J. Walden to amend his motion to table the item until the April 18, 2022 City Council 
meeting; second by M. French.  Vote carried unanimously in favor to approve the amendment and 
to approve the motion.   

  

WORK SESSION 
 

STAFF REPORTS 
 

23. BOB BOLZ, CITY MANAGER:  He reported the leak adjustment for last month totaled $218.20 and 
can answer any questions on his report provided in the packet. 
 

24. ROBIN GAZAWAY, FINANCE ADMINISTRATOR:  Financial reports representing fund balances and 
activity through February 28, 2022 were provided in the agenda packet; no questions or comments 
from City Council. 
 

     EXECUTIVE SESSION:  
 

At 5:46 p.m. a motion to close regular session and go into executive session for pending and/or 
potential litigation and land acquisition was made by W. Illg; second by J. Walden.  Vote carried 
unanimously in favor. 
 

At 6:22 p.m. a motion to close executive session and resume regular session was made by J. Walden; 
second by W. Illg.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.        

          ADJOURNMENT: 
 

At 6:24 p.m. a motion to adjourn the meeting was made by J. Walden; second by W. Illg.  Vote carried 
unanimously. 

 
 

 Approved this 18th day of April 2022. 
 
By: CITY OF DAWSONVILLE 

         
   ___________________________________ 
   Mike Eason, Mayor 
 
   ___________________________________  
   Caleb Phillips, Councilmember Post 1 

 
         
   William Illg, Councilmember Post 2  

 
         
   John Walden, Councilmember Post 3 
 
   ___________________________________ 
   Mark French, Councilmember Post 4 
   
 
Attest: _________________________        
           Beverly A. Banister, City Clerk 





                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:       APPROVE 2022 GEORGIA MUNICIPAL ASSOCIATION (GMA) ANNUAL 

CONVENTION AND TRAINING  
   

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  04/18/2022    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
 

    TO APPROVE GMA CONVENTION EXPENSES FROM 06/23 – 06/28/2022 FOR COUNCILMEMBER 
ILLG AND COUNCILMEMBER WALDEN TO INCLUDE REGISTRATION, TRAINING, LODGING, PER 
DIEM AND MILEAGE.      

    APPROXIMATE TOTAL IS $7,095 
 

    $2,035.00 (REGISTRATION AND TRAINING) TO BE PAID OUT OF FY2022 BUDGET; CHARGED ON 
CREDIT CARD TO RESERVE 

 

    BALANCE WILL BE PAID OUT OF FY2023 BUDGET WHEN RECEIVED AFTER CONVENTION; WILL 
NOT BE ACCRUED FOR FY 2022  

 
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

    APPROXIMATE BREAKDOWN      

    CONVENTION/TRAINING $2,035 
    LODGING    $2,900 
    PER DIEM    $1,440 (MEAL AND DAILY PER DIEM) 
    MILEAGE    $   720  
     $7,095            

     OPTIONS: 
 
    APPROVE, AMEND, DENY OR TABLE 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
 
 

      
REQUESTED BY:  Beverly Banister, City Clerk__________________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   7b     
 

 

 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   APPROVE ANNUAL PREVENTIVE MAINTENANCE CONTRACT FOR LIFT 

STATIONS 
 

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  04/18/2022    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

    TO REQUEST APPROVAL OF THE ANNUAL PREVENTIVE MAINTENANCE CONTRACT FOR 
THE LIFT STATIONS TO PRO PUMP SOLUTIONS, INC IN THE AMOUNT OF $5,690.00 

    
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

• PRO PUMP HAS BEEN SERVICING OUR LIFT STATIONS SINCE 2017 
• A SMALL INCREASE DUE TO FUEL COSTS HAS BEEN ADDED 

 
   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Jacob Barr, Utilities Operation Manager______ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   7c     
 

 

 



 
 

PO Box 127 · Ball Ground · Georgia · 30107 

 

Mr. Jacob Barr          March 15, 2022 
Utilities Department 
City of Dawsonville 
Dawsonville, GA 30534 
maintenance@dawsonville-ga.gov 
 
RE: Proposal for PM Services 
 City of Dawsonville Lift Stations 
 
Dear Jacob: 
 
Pro Pump Solutions, Inc. (Pro Pump) is pleased to provide you with this proposal for PM services at the 
nine (9) lift stations managed by the City of Dawsonville, as described below. 
 
 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
Pro Pump will supply all vehicles, tools, personnel and labor to provide PM services at the following lift 
stations: 

• Farmington Wood Flygt Duplex 3085    3 HP    230v  3 phase 
• Flat Creek Station Hydromatic Duplex HPG 200-m2-2      1 phase 
• Crown Point  Flygt Duplex 3127  7.5 HP  485imp   
• Gold Creek  Flygt Duplex 3152  23 HP 268imp 460v 3 phase 
• Creek Stone  Flygt Duplex 3152  15 HP  487imp 230v 3 phase 
• Shoal Creek  Flygt Duplex 3201  47 HP   480v 3 phase 
• Burt’s Crossing   Flygt Duplex 3127  41 HP   230v 3 phase 
• Downtown Lift Station Flygt Duplex 3085    3 HP  230v 3 phase 
• Burt’s Creek  Flygt Duplex 3201  47 HP  480v 3 phase 

 
 
TERM AND CONDITIONS 
 
Pro Pump will perform all work during regular business hours and will coordinate the timing of services 
with the City of Dawsonville.  Pro Pump will perform a comprehensive 24-point PM inspection at the lift 
stations listed above and furnish a report detailing our findings.  Should any additional repairs be 
required of the pumps or control systems, Pro Pump will provide to the City of Dawsonville a cost 
estimate for such items prior to undertaking any repairs.   
 
For a 1 Year PM Services Agreement ………………………………………………. $5,690.00 
For a 2 Year PM Services Agreement ………………………………………………. $11,380.00 ($5,690.00/yr) 
For a 3 Year PM Services Agreement ………………………………………………. $15,363 ($5120.00/yr)* 
 
(*)  A 10% Discount will be applied to the total contract price for a signed 3 Year Agreement.  

mailto:maintenance@dawsonville-ga.gov


 
 

PO Box 127 · Ball Ground · Georgia · 30107 

 
 
Pro Pump Solutions offers manufacturer’s warranty.  All PM service and repair work is backed by Pro 
Pump’s 1-year labor warranty.  This agreement may be terminated by either party with or without cause 
upon 60 days’ written notice.  
 
Terms are Net: 30 Days 
 
PROPOSED:      ACCEPTED: 
PRO PUMP SOLUTIONS, INC.    CITY OF DAWSONVILLE 

_Danny Bender                            By:  ______________________________ 
Danny Bender 
Field Service Supervisor     __________________________________ 

Print Name and Title     
 
        Date:   ____________________________ 
 
 
 
Please indicate the length of service:   1 yr. 2yrs 3yrs 
 
 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   APPROVE UPDATED 2022 LEASE FOR DAWSONVILLE HISTORY MUSUEM 

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  04/18/2022    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
 

    TO REQUEST APPROVAL FOR THE UPDATED 2022 DAWSONVILLE HISTORY MUSEUM 
LEASE         

 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

• LEASE ORIGINALLY APPROVED AT THE 12/06/2021 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
• MUSUEM DIRECTOR AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS HAD SOME QUESTIONS ABOUT 

THE LEASE BEFORE SIGNING; CONCERNS WERE PRESENTED TO CITY ATTORNEY 
AND CHANGES TO THE LEASE WERE MADE 

• NOTED CHANGES INCLUDE THE DEFAULT SECTION OF THE LEASE, CLARIFICATION 
OF IMPROVEMENTS AT THE MUSUEM AND RESPONSIBLE PARTY, STREAMLINING 
THE PERCENTAGE RENT CALCULATION AND USE OF CITY PROPERTY 
 
 

 
   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 

APPROVE AS PRESENTED 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
    
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Bob Bolz, City Manager______ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   7d     
 

 

 



 

Page 1 of 10 
 

 LEASE AGREEMENT 

This Lease agreement (“Lease”) is entered into effective the 1st day of January, 

2022 by and between THE CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, a Georgia municipal 

corporation, whose address is 415 Hwy. 53 East, Suite 100, Dawsonville, Georgia 30534 

(“Lessor”) and DAWSONVILLE HISTORY MUSEUM, INC., a Georgia non-profit 

corporation d/b/a Georgia Racing Hall of Fame, (“Lessee”), whose address is 415 Hwy. 

53 East, Suite 110, Dawsonville, Georgia 30534. 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the Lessor owns and operates certain property and facilities 

(“Premises”) located at 415 Hwy. 53 East, Dawsonville, Georgia 30534, which is known as 

the City Hall/Dawsonville Municipal Complex; and 

WHEREAS, the Premises includes several tenant spaces, including a museum and 

a retail/manufacturing space, of which the museum space is available for lease and 

suitable for Lessee’s use; and 

WHEREAS, the Lessor desires to lease the museum space, as fully depicted in 

Exhibit “A” attached hereto and fully incorporated herein (“Museum Space”), to Lessee 

for the operation by Lessee of the Georgia Racing Hall of Fame, which will be in general 

open to the public, pursuant to the terms and conditions of the City Lease. 

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and 

obligations set forth herein and in consideration of One Dollar ($1.00) and other good 

and valuable consideration mutually exchanged this date between parties hereto, the 

receipt and adequacy of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties hereby agree as 

follows: 

1. Premises and Use. Lessee shall be permitted to occupy and utilize the areas of 



 

Page 2 of 10 
 

the Premises depicted in Exhibit A, otherwise known as the Museum Space, for the 

purpose of operating the Georgia Racing Hall of Fame Museum, which shall be open to 

the public and maintain business hours as deemed appropriate by Lessee, so long as, such 

operations do not materially interfere with the business and operations of the City of 

Dawsonville.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Lessor shall be 

permitted at no cost to Lessor to use the Alleyway, Men’s and Women’s Bathrooms and 

the Conference Room depicted upon Exhibit A for City sponsored events so long as said 

use does not materially interfere with the Lessee’s reasonable use of these areas.   If grant 

funding becomes available, the parties agree to negotiate in good faith to (a) increase the 

leased space to the Lessee, and (b) account for any loss in income occasioned by the City 

as a result of the necessary modifications of other leases. 

2. Lease Term. This Lease shall commence on January 1, 2022, for the period of 

twelve months (“Lease Term”) terminating on December 31, 2022. The Lease Term is 

NOT subject to an automatic renewal.  

3. Rent. Lessee covenants and agrees to pay Lessor a rent amount as rent for the 

Museum Space during the Lease Term which will be as follows:  

A. Lessee will pay to Lessor Base Rent in the amount of $250.00 (two hundred and 

fifty and no/100 dollars) per month for the Museum Space.  Rent will be due and 

payable by the 5th day of every month, and if not actually received by the City by 

the 10th of the month the rental payment shall be late. For any late payment 

received after the 10th of the month Lessee shall pay to the City a 5% penalty. 

Penalty payment shall be due immediately and must be included with payment of 

past due rent. 



 

Page 3 of 10 
 

B.  Lessee will pay to Lessor Percentage Rent in such amount as is determined by 

subtracting the cost of retail purchases and donations from gross receipts from 

museum operations and multiplying that difference by 15% (fifteen percent).  

Percentage rent is capped each year at the amount that is paid by the City to an 

independent contractor for the purpose of providing management to the 

Dawsonville History Museum, plus the cost of any liability insurance coverage for 

such person.  Percentage rent may be summarized by the following formula: 

(Gross Receipts – (Cost of Retail Purchases + Donations)) * 15% = Percentage Rent 

 

Cost of retail purchases shall mean the funds expended by Lessee for products 

which Lessee resells in order to generate revenue including memorabilia, 

souvenirs, clothing, hats, and similar such items. 

C.  The payments referred to in Paragraph 4, Subparagraphs A and B shall be 

collectively referred to as “Rent.”  Rent will be due and payable by the 5th day of 

every month, and if not actually received by the City by the 10th of the month the 

rental payment shall be late. For any late payment received after the 10th of the 

month Lessee shall pay to the City a 5% penalty. Penalty payment shall be due 

immediately and must be included with payment of past due rent. 

4. Parking. Lessee and its employees shall have the right to use the public parking 

spaces or parking areas near or adjacent to the City Hall/Dawsonville Municipal Complex. 

All such parking shall be on a nonexclusive, non-assigned basis. Lessee shall not use or 

permit its employees or invitees to use any spaces which have been specifically reserved 

by Lessor to other tenants or for such other uses as have been designated as being 

https://www.lawinsider.com/clause/parking


 

Page 4 of 10 
 

restricted to certain uses. Lessee shall at all times comply and cause its employees and 

invitees to comply with any parking rules and regulations as Lessor may from time to time 

reasonably adopt. At no time will Lessee or its employees use any parking spaces for 

storage or containers of any type or description. At no time will Lessee, its employees, or 

its customers use areas not specifically designated for parking as parking spots or areas, 

or for storage. Lessor assumes no liability or risk for any damage that may occur to the 

vehicles or other property of Lessee, its employees, customers or others in any parking 

area or common area. 

5. Storage, Store Fronts, and Unpermitted Uses/Activities. Lessee agrees to 

maintain the Museum Space in a clean condition. Lessee agrees to not use the Museum 

Space as a long-term storage facility for items, except in areas specifically designated for 

the purpose of storage, such as closets. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Lessee shall have 

the right to store items necessary for the proper operation of the Museum for a period of 

time not to exceed three (3) business days. However, such storage shall not impede, 

obstruct, or in any way interfere with the normal operations of the City and/or any other 

tenants or visitors to the Premises. At no time will Lessee store any item that is 

unnecessary for the proper operation of its business within the Museum Space or the 

parking area. 

6. Insurance and other charges. Lessee agrees to and shall pay for general 

liability insurance and shall name the Lessor as certificate holder or additional insured 

under the policy of insurance. Lessee shall keep the general liability policy in full force 

and affect for the full Lease Term with coverage in the amount of at least $1 million per 

person / $2 million per occurrence. Lessee is responsible for all other forms of insurance 



 

Page 5 of 10 
 

(i.e. workers comp, etc.) as may be required by law, except as may be expressly assumed 

by Lessor in writing.  Before holding any events where alcohol is sold or otherwise 

provided to attendees, whether or not it is an event of Lessee or some third party, Lessee 

shall provide or cause a third party to provide a “liquor liability policy” which policy shall 

likewise name the City as an additional insured, and which shall have coverage limits 

commensurate with this paragraph.   

7. Improvements. To the extent Lessee desires to modify, change or improve the 

Museum Space for Lessee’s intended use, all such costs shall be borne by Lessee, and no 

such costs shall be the responsibility of Lessor. Any plans for modifications or 

improvements must be presented to and approved in writing by Lessor prior to initiation 

of any change, modification or construction. 

City Manager or his designee must preapprove any expense by the Lessee that is 

believed to be incurred by the Lessor.  Lessee will be responsible for any expense they 

initiated without pre-approval from the City. 

8.  Utilization of City Employees and/or City Funds.  Lessee is responsible for 

the charge of utilizing City employees to perform work inside or outside of the museum 

not related to the maintenance of the museum that is the responsibility of the Lessor.  The 

charge for the utilization of City employees will be billed monthly at the rate of $20 per 

hour, per employee during regular business hours and $30 per hour, per employee for 

work performed outside of regular business hours.  Regular business hours are defined as 

Monday through Friday, 8:00 am to 4:30 pm. 

Lessee will be required to request and receive approval for the utilization of City 

Employees from the City Manager or his designee forty-eight hours in advance.  A 



 

Page 6 of 10 
 

request for utilization of City Employees does not guarantee they will be available.  

9. Utilities. Lessee is responsible for all utilities associated with its occupation and 

use of the Museum Space including, but not limited to, water, sewer, natural gas, and 

electricity. Lessee shall install and maintain any necessary utility meters or sub-meters at 

Lessee’s expense.  

10.  Office Supplies/Printer.  Lessee is responsible for providing their own 

copier/printer, ink, toner, paper and other related office supplies for their operations. 

11. Garbage/Dumpster Removal Services.  Lessor shall provide access to Lessee 

to the Lessor’s dumpster located on the property adjacent to the Premises for Lessee’s 

normal weekly garbage usage.  Lessee shall not deposit any hazardous substances in the 

dumpster or place any garbage or trash outside of the dumpster at any time.  All garbage 

and trash from Lessee’s use of the Premises shall be hauled to and deposited in the 

dumpster by Lessee on at least a weekly basis.  

12. Pest Control. Lessee, at its cost, shall at all times keep the Premises free of pests. 

Lessor may elect to implement a program of pest control and, in such event, Lessee hereby 

grants Lessor the right to enter the Premises and perform such spraying and/or 

inspections that Lessor deems appropriate, and Lessee shall reimburse Lessor for Lessee's 

share of the cost of such program. If Lessor does not elect to implement a pest control 

program, Lessee shall implement a program of pest control satisfactory to Lessor which 

may include, without limitation, (a) moving any furniture, fixtures, equipment, displays 

or inventory during inspections and spraying by Lessee's exterminator; and (b) 

maintaining the Premises in a clean, trash-free and sanitary condition. Lessee further 

acknowledges that Lessee's exterminator shall, in an environmentally safe way, perform 

https://www.lawinsider.com/clause/pest-control


 

Page 7 of 10 
 

inspections and/or spraying at least every month. If Lessee fails to promptly and fully 

comply with this Section, Lessor shall have the right, but not the obligation, to enter the 

Premises to perform such spraying or inspections at Lessee's expense. Performance of 

such work by Lessor shall not constitute a waiver of Lessee’s default in failing to do the 

same and neither shall it entitle Lessee to any damages for any injury or inconvenience 

occasioned thereby nor to any abatement of rent. Lessee shall reimburse Lessor for any 

cost incurred by Lessor pursuant to this Section upon demand therefor. 

13. Security Deposit. Because of the relationship between Lessor and Lessee and 

Lessee’s status as a non-profit corporation operating a museum for the benefit of the 

general public, no Security Deposit shall be required from Lessee for this Lease.   

14. Binding Effect and Severability. The provisions of this Lease shall be binding 

upon and inure to the benefit of both parties and their respective successors and assigns. 

If any provision of this Lease or any application thereof shall be invalid or unenforceable, 

the remainder of this Lease and any other application of such provision shall not be 

affected thereby. 

15. Quiet Enjoyment. Upon due performance by Lessee of its covenants and 

agreements under this Lease, Lessor covenants that Lessee shall and may at all times 

peaceably and quietly have, hold, and enjoy the Museum Space during the Lease Term.  

16. Headings. The Section headings are for convenience and reference only and shall 

not be used to limit or otherwise affect the meaning of any provision of this Lease. 

17. Counterparts. This Lease may be simultaneously executed in two or more 

counterparts, each of which shall be deemed a fully enforceable original but all of which 

together shall constitute one and the same instrument. 



 

Page 8 of 10 
 

18. Governing law, Venue and Jurisdiction. This Lease shall be construed in 

accordance with and governed by the laws of the State of Georgia. Both parties hereby 

consent to jurisdiction and venue in Dawson County, Georgia in any action brought to 

enforce any provision of this Lease. 

19. Relationship of parties. Lessor and Lessee shall not be considered or deemed 

to be joint venturers or partners and neither shall have the power to bind or obligate the 

other except as set forth herein.  In the event that Lessor engages a person or entity for 

the purpose of providing management related to Lessee and Lessee’s use of the Museum 

Space, such shall not change the relationship of the parties or anything in this Paragraph 

19.  The foregoing notwithstanding, the continued cooperation between Lessor, Lessee 

and any such individual or entity as determined in Lessor’s discretion is a material term 

of this lease, and the lack of such cooperation may be grounds for termination of this 

Lease Agreement.

20. Default. Lessee shall be in default if it fails to pay any rent or any other obligation 

when due to Lessor or fails to comply with any of the requirements of this Lease applicable 

to Lessee, including but not limited to the requirement to work in conjunction with any 

person or entity engaged by Lessor for management of the Museum Space, compliance 

with which is determined in Lessor’s discretion. In the event Lessee defaults, Lessor may 

terminate this Lease and pursue such remedies as are allowed by law. Included among 

these remedies shall be the right of Lessor to recover all rents owed under the Lease for 

the unexpired portion of the Lease Term. Upon a default and prior to exercising any 

remedy hereunder or allowed by law, Lessor shall provide Lessee written notice of the 

default and of Lessor’s intent to exercise remedies.   Lessee shall communicate within ten 



 

Page 9 of 10 
 

(10) days following receipt of the notice of default whether or not it intends to cure the 

default.  If Lessee communicates that it intends to cure the default, Lessee shall have 

thirty (30) days from its notice to Lessor to complete its cure, however, so long as Lessee 

is diligently pursuing a cure to its default, Lessor in its discretion may extend the time for 

cure an additional thirty (30) days.  If the default is not cured within the cure period, or 

if Lessee fails to give notice that it intends to cure the default, then Lessor will be 

immediately entitled to take possession of the Museum Space. Lessee waives any further 

right to notice prior to Lessor pursuing remedies other than those contained herein.  

Lessor shall be in default if it fails to comply with any of the requirements of this Lease 

applicable to Lessor.  The foregoing notwithstanding, in the event a default of the Lessee 

poses or creates an imminent threat to life, health, or poses an immediate risk of 

substantial property damage or destruction, Lessor shall have the ability to immediately 

enter the premises in order to cure any such default.  

21. Construction. All terms used in this Lease, regardless of the number or gender 

in which they are used, shall be deemed and construed to include any other number, 

singular or plural, and by other gender, masculine, feminine, or neuter, as the context or 

sense of this Lease or any section, subsection, or clause herein may require as if such 

terms had been fully and properly written in such number or gender. 

22. Modification. No changes, additions, or interlineations made to this Lease shall 

be binding unless initialed by both parties. 

23. Non-waiver. No delay or failure by either party to exercise any right under this 

Lease, and no partial or single exercise of that right, shall constitute a waiver of that or 

any other right, unless otherwise expressly provided herein. 



 

Page 10 of 10 
 

24. Time of essence. Time is expressly declared to be of the essence of this Lease. 

25. Entire Agreement. This Lease supersedes all agreements previously made 

between the parties relating to its subject matter. There are no other understandings or 

agreements between them. 

In witness whereof the parties have executed this Lease effective as of the date first above 

written. 

(Signatures on following page) 

 

 

LESSOR:  LESSEE: 
CITY OF DAWSONVILLE  DAWSONVILLE HISTORY MUSEUM, 

INC.  
 
 
___________________________  ___________________________ 
By: Mike Eason, Mayor  By:     Calvin Byrd, CEO
 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                                  EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION_____________  

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  04/18/2022     
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

TO RECOGNIZE AND PRESENT THE FOLLOWING:  
• MARCH 2022 EMPLOYEE OF THE MONTH  
• EMPLOYEE OF THE SECOND QUARTER 
• SERVICE AWARDS FOR THE MONTH OF APRIL 

 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
 

 
 

     OPTIONS: 
      
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
   
 
 

 
 

 
     REQUESTED BY:                 Bob Bolz, City Manager________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #    8     
 

 

 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   PROCLAMATION: ADMINISTRATIVE PROFESSIONALS DAY, APRIL 27, 2022 

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  04/18/2022    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

    TO RECOGNIZE ADMINISTRATIVE PROFESSIONALS’ DAY AND READ PROCLAMATION 
    
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

   ADMINISTRATIVE PROFESSIONALS’ DAY IS WEDNESDAY, APRIL 27, 2022 
   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Bob Bolz, City Manager______ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   9     
 

 

 





                                           
 

 

SUBJECT:                                  ZA C2200130         _________ 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  04/18/2022       
 
PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL 
 
Rezoning application requires a public hearing before approval.   
 
HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
1. Property is in Post 2 William Illg Council district. 

2. The city is requesting to rezone property from PCS district (Planned Conservation Subdivision 
District) to R6 district (Multiple Family Residential District). 
 

3. Rezoning is for 1 acre. 

4. The subject property adjoins city R3 zoning district to the south, city R3 zoning district to the west, 
city R3 zoning district to the east and city HB zoning district to the north. 

 
5. 2018 comprehensive plan character area proposes commercial use.  

 
6. Planning Department is reviewing the status of each parcel in the City verses the 2018 zoning map 

and found the 2018 zoning map incorrect. The City is recommending the property owner rezone to 
R6 (Multiple Family Residential District) to avoid future non-conforming zoning.       

 
7. Planning Commission approved the request on 3/14/22 without conditions. 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

OPTIONS: 
 

 ___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 

 
 

DEPARTMENT:  Planning and Zoning______________________________________________ 
 

REQUESTED BY: David Picklesimer_        ____________________________________________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM # 10 
 













































                                           
 

 

SUBJECT:   ANX-ZA-C2100043    _______________________ 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  04/18/2022       
 

 
PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: VOTE TABLED FROM MARCH 21, 2022 
 
ANX-ZA C2100043: Allen Street Properties, LLC and B & K Turner Family, LLP have petitioned to annex 
into the city limits of Dawsonville tract 2 with 32.937 acres (amended application) tract known as a portion 
of TMP 093 004 001, located at Perimeter Road, with a request to rezone from County Zoning of RSR 
(Residential Sub Rural) and RA (Restricted Agriculture) to City Zoning of R3 (Single Family Residential). 
Public Hearing Dates: Planning Commission on September 13, 2021 and City Council on October 4, 2021. 
City Council for a decision on October 18, 2021. 
 
HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

• Planning Commission denied the request on 9/13/21. Concept plan did not meet city ordinances.  
• Amended application to annex and zone tract 2 with 32.937 acre only. 
• Amended concept plan reflects proposed 65 units. 
• Amended letter of intent request to approve 75 units yielding a density of 2.28 units per acre. 
• Applicant is requesting a variance to the Land Development Regulations Chapter 109 Sec 109-53-

Sidewalks to eliminate the required sidewalk along Perimeter Road lots 58 thru 65. 
• Planning department has provided a revised timeline. 
• Planning department has provided a department summary with recommended conditions if 

approved.     
________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

OPTIONS: Approve, Amend, Deny  
________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
If annexation and zoning is approved motion recommended to be as follows: Motion to approve annexation 
and zoning application C2100043 tract # 2 known as a portion of TMP 093 004 001 with 32.937 acres. 
Density shall not exceed 75 units or 2.28 units per acre. Approval shall be conditioned per Planning and 
Zoning Department summary letter dated 1/11/22.    
 
If the variance is approved motion recommended to be as follows: Motion to approve the variance request to 
the Land Development Regulations Chapter 109 Sec 109-53-Sidewalks to eliminate the required sidewalk 
along Perimeter Rd lots 58-65. 
 
 

DEPARTMENT:  Planning and Zoning______________________________________________ 
 

REQUESTED BY: David Picklesimer_        ____________________________________________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM # 11 
 



. 
 
 
 
 
415 Highway 53 E. Suite 100 
Dawsonville, Georgia 30534 
 
   

 
 
 
 

(706) 265-3256 
Fax (706) 265-4214 

www.dawsonville-ga.gov 

 
Date: 1/11/2022 

 

To: Mayor Mike Eason and City Council 

 

Reference: ANX/ZA C2100043 Planning and Zoning Department Summary 

 

The planning department has provided the following pertinent information to help you decide on this 
request: 

1.  If the zoning amendment is approved the Planning Department is requesting a condition of zoning to 
include an approved water and sewer service area agreement between Etowah Water and Sewer Authority 
and the City of Dawsonville. The service area agreement dedication must include both water and sewer 
services. The agreement shall be dedicated to the City of Dawsonville prior to the issuance of a grading 
permit (LDP).  

2. If the zoning amendment is approved the Planning Department is requesting a condition of zoning to 
include the installation of an engineered AC or Solar powered, high intensity LED signs, in pavement 
crosswalk LED lights and activated device across Perimeter Road at the intersection of Allen Street to 
provide pedestrian access to Robinson Elementary school. 

3. If the zoning amendment is approved the Planning Department is requesting a condition of zoning to 
include the installation of a sidewalk from the 32.937-acre tract to the existing sidewalk system in front of 
Dawson County High school. 

4. If the zoning amendment is approved the Planning Department is requesting a condition of zoning to 
include a ten foot no access buffer along Perimeter Road.  

5.  If the zoning amendment is approved the Planning Department is requesting a condition of zoning to 
include the installation of a right in and right-out vehicle movement at the north entrance due to the 
intersection alignment not meeting GDOT intersection offset requirements. 

 
 
David Picklesimer 
Planning Director 
 

 

 

 



. 
 
 
 
 
415 Highway 53 E. Suite 100 
Dawsonville, Georgia 30534 

 

 
 
 
 

(706) 265-3256 
Fax (706) 265-4214 

www.dawsonville-ga.gov 

 

Date: 12/7/21 

 

From: David Picklesimer, Planning Director 

 

Reference: ANX/ZA C2100043 Timeline 

 

• Original application submitted to the city: 8/14/20. 
• Original application submitted to Dawson County BOC: 8/21/20. 
• Planning Department advertised original application: 8/26/20. 
• Original application response received from Dawson County BOC: 9/11/20. 
• Planning Commission public hearing on original application: 9/14/20. Applicant requested postponement. 
• Planning Commission public hearing on original application: 11/9/20. PC voted to deny. 
• Council held public hearing on original application:11/16/20. Council postponed until 1/19/21. 
• Applicant amended application: 12/9/20. 
• Amended application submitted to Dawson County BOC: 12/9/20 
• Dawson County BOC response to amended application received: 1/7/21.  
• Council held public hearing 1/19/21. Council tabled until arbitration complete. 
• Dawson County BOC withdrew objection 5/11/21.  
• Planning Department advertised Council public hearing meeting on 5/26/21 for amended application.  
• Council public hearing date 6/21/21 for amended application.  
• Council final decision date 7/19/21 for amended application.  
• Applicant requested to postpone 7/19/21 until 10/18/21 to allow adjoining property owner time to request 

annexation. 
• Planning Department advertised amended application 8/18/21 due to wrong TMP advertised. 
• Planning Commission public hearing date 9/13/21 due to wrong TMP advertised. 
• Planning Commission denied request 9/13/21. 
• City Council public hearing date 10/4/21 due to wrong TMP advertised. 
• City Council decision date 10/18/21.  
• City Council postponed until 12/6/21. 
• City Council postponed until 1/20/22. 
• City Council postponed until 03/21/22. 

 

  

 





Perimeter Road 
32.937 Acres 

 
All that tract or parcel of land lying and being in Land Lots 372, 373, 427 and 428 of the 
North Half of the 13th Land District, Dawson County, Georgia and being more 
particularly described as follows; 
 
To find the True Point of Beginning, commence at the intersection of Land Lots 371 and 
372 and the Easterly right of way of Perimeter Road (80’ right of way), said point marked 
by a ½ inch Rod found; Thence traveling on said Perimeter Road right of way the following 
three (3) courses and distances: 
along a curve to the right having a radius of 1766.51 feet and an arc length of 162.28 feet 
being subtended by a chord bearing of South 12 Degrees 33 Minutes 28 Seconds East  and a 
chord distance of 162.22feet to a point; THENCE along a curve to the right having a radius 
of 1049.03 feet and an arc length of 473.65 feet being subtended by a chord bearing of 
South 03 Degrees 00 Minutes 32 Seconds West  and a chord distance of 469.63 feet to a 
point; THENCE continuing on said right of way South 15 Degrees 56 Minutes 37 Seconds 
West for a distance of 651.37 feet to a point, said point marked by a ½ inch rebar pin set, 
said point being THE TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING. 
 
THENCE from said point as thus established, leaving said easterly right of way of 
Perimeter Road, North 89 Degrees 17 Minutes 56 Seconds East for a distance of 172.17 feet 
to a point; THENCE along a curve to the right having a radius of 636.02 feet and an arc 
length of 103.03 feet being subtended by a chord bearing of South 86 Degrees 03 Minutes 
37 Seconds East  and a chord distance of 102.92 feet to a point, said point marked by a ½ 
inch rebar pin set; THENCE South 81 Degrees 25 Minutes 09 Seconds East for a distance 
of 106.01 feet to a point, said point marked by a ½ inch rebar pin set; THENCE along a 
curve to the left having a radius of 663.34 feet and an arc length of 195.29 feet being 
subtended by a chord bearing of South 89 Degrees 51 Minutes 12 Seconds East  and a 
chord distance of 194.58 feet to a point, said point marked by a ½ inch rebar pin set; 
THENCE North 81 Degrees 42 Minutes 46 Seconds East for a distance of 407.62 feet to a 
point, said point marked by a ½ inch rebar pin set; THENCE along a curve to the right 
having a radius of 59.40 feet and an arc length of 40.63 feet being subtended by a chord 
bearing of South 78 Degrees 41 Minutes 37 Seconds East  and a chord distance of 39.84 feet 
to a point, said point marked by a ½ inch rebar pin set; THENCE South 59 Degrees 06 
Minutes 00 Seconds East for a distance of 40.85 feet to a point, said point marked by a ½ 
inch rebar pin set; THENCE along a curve to the right having a radius of 159.40 feet and 
an arc length of 47.19 feet being subtended by a chord bearing of South 50 Degrees 37 
Minutes 08 Seconds East  and a chord distance of 47.02 feet to a point, said point marked 
by a ½ inch rebar pin set; THENCE South 42 Degrees 08 Minutes 15 Seconds East for a 
distance of 19.39 feet to a point, said point marked by a ½ inch rebar pin set; THENCE 
along a curve to the left having a radius of 240.60 feet and an arc length of 188.97 feet being 
subtended by a chord bearing of South 64 Degrees 38 Minutes 15 Seconds East and a chord 
distance of 184.15 feet to a point, said point marked by a ½ inch rebar pin set; THENCE 
South 87 Degrees 08 Minutes 15 Seconds East for a distance of 60.12 feet to a point, said 
point marked by a ½ inch rebar pin set; THENCE traveling South 02 Degrees 23 Minutes 



44 Seconds East for a distance of 817.75 feet to a point, said point marked by a ½ inch 
rebar pin found;  THENCE South 85 Degrees 54 Minutes 23 Seconds West for a distance of 
1589.65 feet to a point on the easterly right of way of Perimeter Road (80’ right of way), 
said point marked by a ½ inch rebar pin found; 
 
THENCE traveling on said Perimeter Road right of way the following four (4) courses and 
distances: 
along a curve to the right having a radius of 4750.52 feet and an arc length of 180.80 feet 
being subtended by a chord bearing of North 05 Degrees 58 Minutes 08 Seconds East  and 
a chord distance of 180.79 feet to a point; THENCE along a curve to the right having a 
radius of 3438.13 feet and an arc length of 387.33 feet being subtended by a chord bearing 
of North 10 Degrees 17 Minutes 12 Seconds East  and a chord distance of 387.13 feet to a 
point; THENCE along a curve to the right having a radius of 3438.13 feet and an arc 
length of 145.79 feet being subtended by a chord bearing of North 14 Degrees 43 Minutes 
43 Seconds East  and a chord distance of 145.78 feet to a point; THENCE North 15 Degrees 
56 Minutes 37 Seconds East for a distance of 360.06 feet to a point, said point being THE 
TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING. 
 
Said property contains 32.937 Acres 











































































                                           
 

 

SUBJECT:                                  ZA C2200119         _________ 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  04/18/2022       
 
PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL; TABLED FROM 03/21/2022 
 
Rezoning application requires a public hearing before approval.   
 
HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
1. Property is in Caleb Phillips Post 1 Council district. 

2. Applicant is requesting to rezone property from R1 district (Restricted Single Family Residential 
District) to R3 district (Single Family Residential District). 
 

3. Applicant is requesting to rezone 121.11 acres. 

4. Minimum 1500 heated square foot homes. 

5. Annexed into the city on January 5, 2004. 

6. The subject property adjoins County zoned RSR district to the south, County RA district to the west, 
County RA district and City R3 district to the north and City R1 district to the east. 

 
7. 2018 comprehensive plan character area proposes residential use.  

 
8. DRI findings recommended potential connections to future trails or sidewalks outside of the 

subdivision and pedestrian connectivity network within the development and requested additional 
best environmental practices and explicit protection for the Etowah River water shed. City code will 
require sidewalks on both side of the interior streets and sidewalk connectivity to Thunder Ridge 
development along HWY 9S frontage. 

 
9. If approved the Planning Department recommends a 50-foot undisturbed stream buffer and 25-foot 

impervious setback on each side of the existing streams. An exception is made for the installation of 
the required sanitary sewer lines and their associated easement to be allowed within the 25-foot 
impervious setback. 

 
10. If approved the Planning Department recommends the installation of nature trail network system 

without land disturbance measures that will follow the existing topography in the open space areas 
and have connectivity to the Thunder Ridge development nature trails. 

 
11. If approved the Planning Department recommends a not to exceed 220 units and a density of 1.82 

units per acre.   

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM # 12 
 



 
12. If approved the Planning Department recommends a no access easement adjoining the HWY 9S 

frontage boundary.     
 

13. If approved the Planning Department recommends the applicant request a stream study in Shoal 
Creek Tributary Number 14 and 14.1 from the US Fish and Wildlife Service to determine the 
existence of the threatened Cherokee or Etowah Darter. If Darters exist in either tributary the 
applicant must request a formal consultation meeting with the US Fish and Wildlife Service and 
provide the City with FWS recommended protection action plan.   

 
14. If approved the Planning Department recommends a 75-foot undisturbed buffer and additional 25-

foot planted buffer adjoining the South boundary line of Apple Ridge parcels from HWY 9S to TMP 
087 003. In the event the 25-foot planted buffer area requires grading activity and or the existing 
vegetation is found not appropriate the buffer shall be supplemented with approved and additional 
plantings per City buffer requirements.   

 
15. If approved the Planning Department recommends donated funds be dedicated for a future Round 

About at Perimeter Road and HWY 9S. Funds in the amount of 1,000.00 per unit shall be donated 
prior to each building permit approval. Funds shall be eligible for future impact fee credit if the City 
adopts said fees in the future. 

 
16. If approved the Planning Department recommends the development be constructed in multiple 

phases.    
 

17. Planning Commission denied the request on 2/14/22.  
 

 
 

 
________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

OPTIONS: Approve, Deny or Postpone 
 

 ___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
If zoning application is approved motion recommended to be as follows: Motion to approve zoning 
application C2200119 conditioned per Planning Department summary 3/17/22 items 9 thru16.   
 

 
 

DEPARTMENT:  Planning and Zoning______________________________________________ 
 

REQUESTED BY: David Picklesimer_        ____________________________________________ 



































































                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   LETTER OF COMMITMENT TO APPALACHIAN REGIONAL COMMISSION 

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  04/18/2022    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

    TO CONSIDER APPROVAL OF LETTER OF COMMITMENT TO THE ARC FOR THE 
DEVELOPMENT OF THE DOWNTOWN STRATEGIC PLAN AND TO APPROVE THE GRANT 
MATCH EXPENDITURE OF $30,000 TO BE FUNDED BY SPLOST VII 

 
     ARC WILL BE CONTRIBUTING $70,0000 
    
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

• CITY COUNCIL APPROVED SEEKING THE GRANT FOR THE DOWNTOWN STRATEGIC 
PLAN ON 09/20/2021 

• LETTER OF COMMITMENT IS REQUIRED FOR THE NEXT PHASE OF THE PROCESS 
   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Bob Bolz, City Manager______ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   13     
 

 

 



. 
 
 
 
 
415 Highway 53 E. Suite 100 
Dawsonville, Georgia 30534 

 

 
 
 
 

(706) 265-3256 
Fax (706) 265-4214 

www.dawsonville-ga.gov 

 
 

  

 
 
 
April 18, 2022 
 
Ms. Annaka Woodruff, Program Manager 
Appalachian Regional Commission 
GA Department of Community Affairs 
60 Executive Park South, NE 
Atlanta, GA  30329 
 
Re: Commitment of Funds 
 
Dear Ms. Woodruff, 
 
The City of Dawsonville is applying for $70,000 in Appalachian Regional Commission (ARC) 
investment for the development of a downtown strategic plan.  Contingent upon approval of a 
grant award under the ARC grant program, the City of Dawsonville hereby commits to provide 
$30,000 in matching funds for costs associated with this project.  
 
Should you have any questions or need additional information, please feel free to contact City 
Manager Bob Bolz at 706-265-3256. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Mike Eason 
Mayor 
 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   STORM WATER INFRASTRUCTURE MAINTENANCE AND EXPENSES 

AGREEMENT 
 

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  04/18/2022    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

    TO CONSIDER APPROVAL OF THE STORM WATER INFRASTRUCTURE MAINTENANCE AND 
EXPENSES AGREEMENT AS PREPARED BY LEGAL 

          
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

• CITY COUNCIL HAS BEEN CONSIDERING REQUEST FROM PROPERTY OWNERS 
CONCERNING THE MAPLE HILL DRIVE DETENTION POND 

• CITY COUNCIL DIRECTED LEGAL TO PREPARE AN AGREEMENT TO BE 
CONSIDERED BY THE PROPERTY OWNERS OF MAPLE HILL DRIVE  

   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Kevin Tallant, City Attorney______ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   14     
 

 

 



 

Page 1 of 8 
 

AGREEMENT RELATED TO STORM WATER  
INFRASTRUCTURE MAINTENANCE AND EXPENSES 

 
THIS AGREEMENT is entered into this ____ day of _______________, 2022, by and between 
the City of Dawsonville, Georgia, and the property owners signing below, for the purpose of 
establishing a method ensuring maintenance and collecting costs associated with maintenance 
activities for the detention pond servicing Maple Hill Drive in Dawsonville, Georgia, and the 
residences located thereon.   

WITNESSETH 

WHEREAS: the City of Dawsonville has an ordinance related to stormwater infrastructure, its 
maintenance,  and related costs and expenses for the same; 

WHEREAS, the City of Dawsonville’s ordinance starts from a premise that the property owner of 
the stormwater infrastructure is financially responsible for its maintenance; 

WHEREAS, there are provisions, however, for when a stormwater infrastructure device serves 
more than just the property owner of the device; 

WHEREAS, when a stormwater infrastructure device serves a residential development without a 
homeowners association, all persons owning properties whose stormwater flows to the stormwater 
device shall be responsible for the maintenance of the stormwater facility and the costs therefore; 

WHEREAS, Maple Hill Drive in incorporated Dawsonville, Georgia, is a residential development 
without a homeowners association; 

WHEREAS, Maple Hill Drive was permitted to be developed without a homeowners association 
by the City well in excess of ten years ago, which events would not be possible under the version 
of the City’s zoning and development codes not in effect; 

WHEREAS, Maple Hill Drive has a stormwater facility which provides stormwater runoff 
detention for the properties located on Maple Hill Drive (“Stormwater Facility”); 

WHEREAS, the stormwater facility to which the properties on Maple Hill Drive contribute 
stormwater runoff is in need of repair and maintenance; 

WHEREAS, the situation on Maple Hill Drive is one of only two known situations in the City of 
Dawsonville where a development was constructed with a stormwater detention facility but no 
homeowners association to provide stormwater maintenance;  

WHEREAS, the stormwater facility on Maple Hill Drive is on the property of two owners, which 
owners should not have to bear the entire cost of maintenance for the development; 

WHEREAS, the property owners on Maple Hill Drive may well not have expected the need to pay 
maintenance costs when they first purchased their homes there; 

WHEREAS, the City is intent on assisting the Maple Hill Drive homeowners with the maintenance 
of their stormwater facility, but is not in a position to provide said maintenance in perpetuity; 



 

Page 2 of 8 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Dawsonville has determined that assisting the 
homeowners on Maple Hill Drive to repair and maintain their facility while also establishing a 
methodology for them to be financially responsible for said maintenance is in the best interests of 
the City and is something for which the City derives and will derive a substantial benefit; 

WHEREAS, the property owners signing below have determined that it is in their best interests to 
enter into this agreement with the City of Dawsonville so as to facilitate compliance with the 
maintenance and financial responsibilities, and to avoid liens being placed upon their property; 

WHEREAS, the property owners signing below sign this document with reference to their 
ownership of property in “lots” identified herein which lots refer to the Plat for Maple Hill, 
recorded at Plat Book 56, Pages 201-203, Dawson County Records; 

AND WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Dawsonville and the property owners signing 
below have determined that it is in their best interests to reduce their agreement to writing; 

NOW THEREFORE, premises considered, the City of Dawsonville and the property owners 
signing below hereby covenant and agree as follows:  

Section 1. Immediate Maintenance Activities:  The City of Dawsonville shall engage the 
services of a private party to provide maintenance and repair to the Stormwater Facility at 
a cost to be approved by the Council of the City of Dawsonville which maintenance and 
repair shall, in the opinion of the City of Dawsonville or its designee, provide for a properly 
functional stormwater detention pond on Maple Hill Drive.  The cost of this immediate 
maintenance activity shall be borne by the City of Dawsonville, Georgia. 

Section 2. Future Maintenance Activities: The City of Dawsonville shall complete regular 
inspections of the Stormwater Facility in its discretion, and shall engage the services of a 
private party or, in its sole and absolute discretion, may use City of Dawsonville 
employees, to perform future maintenance on the Stormwater Facility.  

Section 3. Costs Related to Future Maintenance:  Costs related to future maintenance shall 
be paid as follows: 

a. The City of Dawsonville shall establish a fee to be charged for Stormwater Facility 
maintenance, which fee shall be comprised of the estimated cost for the provision 
of Stormwater Facility maintenance plus an administrative fee to cover the cost of 
the City of Dawsonville employee time and other expenses incurred in managing 
said payments and maintenance activities.  The fee shall be assessed as a charge on 
the utility bill of the property owners signing below.  All parties agree that this is a 
fee charged for the provision of services for which the property owners signing 
below are financially responsible for providing, and that this is not a tax, penalty or 
fine. 

b. In the event of an unexpected maintenance activity which must occur to maintain 
the functioning of the Stormwater Facility (i.e. fallen tree removal) the City of 
Dawsonville may add such costs to the monthly maintenance fee for so long as 
necessary to recoup such costs. 



 

Page 3 of 8 
 

Section 4. Payment of Future Maintenance Expenses:  Future maintenance expenses after 
the completion of the activities from Section 1, above, shall be paid for as follows: 

a. The City of Dawsonville shall utilize the funds collected pursuant to Section 3 for 
maintenance purposes, in proportion to the percentage of properties on Maple Hill 
Drive contributing to the maintenance activities by signing below.  By way of 
example and not limitation, if 7/13 houses on Maple Hill Drive contribute to the 
costs of Stormwater Facility maintenance through Section 3, above, then 7/13 of 
the cost of any maintenance activity shall be assessed against the funds collected 
by the City of Dawsonville for maintenance activity purposes. 

b. The remainder of any expenses not covered by Section 4(a) shall be paid by the 
City of Dawsonville, and the amount of those expenses shall be divided among the 
properties on Maple Hill Drive which are not a part of this agreement, after which 
a lien shall be filed against said properties in their proportionate amount of the 
expenses advanced by the City of Dawsonville.  By way of example and not 
limitation, if the outstanding fees not covered by Section 4(a) is $10,000.00, and if 
6/13 properties do not join this agreement and make their required payments, then 
a lien in the amount of $1,666.67 shall be filed against each of the 6 non-
contributing properties. 

c. The liens described in Section 4(b), above, may be enforced by the City of 
Dawsonville pursuant to its Code and the laws of the State of Georgia. 

Section 5. Term:  Pursuant to the law governing municipal contracts, this agreement shall 
have a term of one year, but shall automatically renew each and every year unless the City 
of Dawsonville provides 60 days advance notice to the property owners executing this 
agreement that it does not intend to renew.   

Section 6. Additional Parties.  Any party seeking to enter into this Agreement with the City 
of Dawsonville after sixty (60) days from its first presentation to the property owners of 
properties on Maple Hill Drive may do so on such terms and conditions as the City of 
Dawsonville determines are proper and fair to all other signatories to this agreement, which 
determination shall be made in the discretion of the City of Dawsonville. 

Section 7. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be deemed to constitute a contract made 
and entered into under the laws of the State of Georgia, and for all purposes this Agreement 
shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Georgia 
without giving effect to the choice of laws provisions thereof. 

Section 8. Venue. This Agreement shall be deemed for all purposes to have been entered into 
in Dawson County, Georgia.  Any litigation arising directly or indirectly from a dispute 
under the Agreement shall be litigated solely in the State Courts of Dawson County, 
Georgia, and the parties hereby expressly agree to submit to the personal jurisdiction of 
that Court for that purpose. 

Section 9. Binding Agreement. The terms of the provisions of this Agreement shall be 
binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the Parties hereto, their respective 
predecessors, successors, transferees and assigns, including future owners of the property 
owned by the individuals signing below. 



 

Page 4 of 8 
 

Section 10.Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, 
each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall be deemed one 
and the same instrument.  Electronic signatures are acceptable as originals. 

Section 11. Severability. If any term, covenant, condition, or provision of this Agreement, or 
the application of them to any circumstance is, at any time or to any extent, determined by 
a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of the 
Agreement or its application to circumstances other than those to which it is held invalid 
or unenforceable shall not be affected, and each term, covenant, condition, and provision 
of this Agreement shall remain valid and enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law.   

Section 12. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement and the attachments hereto constitute the 
entire agreement between the Parties and fully supersede and cancel any and all prior 
agreements, understandings, commitments, negotiations, or representations between, 
among, or by the Parties relating to the subject matter of this Agreement.  This Agreement 
has been the subject of negotiations and discussions between and among the Parties. It has 
been and shall be construed to have been drafted by all the Parties, so that any rule of 
construing ambiguities against the drafter shall have no force and effect. 

Section 13.Further Assurance.   From and after the date of this Agreement, each of the Parties 
shall, from time to time, at the request of the other Party and without further consideration, 
do, execute and deliver, cause to be done, executed and delivered, all such further acts, 
things and instruments as may be reasonably requested or required more effectively to 
evidence and give effect to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. 

So Agreed effective the date stated hereinabove. 

 

City of Dawsonville, Georgia 
 
___________________________________ 
Michael Eason, Mayor 
 

Attest: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Beverly Banister, Clerk 

 
Lot 1, Maple Hill 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Michael Wise 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Tina Wise 
 

 
Sworn to and Subscribed before me this ____ 
day of ______________, 2022. 
 
____________________________________ 
Notary Public 
My commission expires: _______________ 
 
 
Sworn to and Subscribed before me this ____ 
day of ______________, 2022. 
 
____________________________________ 
Notary Public 
My commission expires: _______________ 



 

Page 5 of 8 
 

 
Lot 2, Maple Hill 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Vincent Savage 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Yessica Savage 
 

 
Sworn to and Subscribed before me this ____ 
day of ______________, 2022. 
 
____________________________________ 
Notary Public 
My commission expires: _______________ 
 
 
Sworn to and Subscribed before me this ____ 
day of ______________, 2022. 
 
____________________________________ 
Notary Public 
My commission expires: _______________ 

 
Lot 3, Maple Hill 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Carolyn Rast 
 

 
Sworn to and Subscribed before me this ____ 
day of ______________, 2022. 
 
____________________________________ 
Notary Public 
My commission expires: _______________ 

 
Lot 4, Maple Hill 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Timothy Halliday, Trustee 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Eva Halliday, Trustee 
 

 
Sworn to and Subscribed before me this ____ 
day of ______________, 2022. 
 
____________________________________ 
Notary Public 
My commission expires: _______________ 
 
 
Sworn to and Subscribed before me this ____ 
day of ______________, 2022. 
 
____________________________________ 
Notary Public 
My commission expires: _______________ 



 

Page 6 of 8 
 

 
Lot 5, Maple Hill 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Benjamin Holloway 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Amber Holloway 

 
Sworn to and Subscribed before me this ____ 
day of ______________, 2022. 
 
____________________________________ 
Notary Public 
My commission expires: _______________ 
 
 
Sworn to and Subscribed before me this ____ 
day of ______________, 2022. 
 
____________________________________ 
Notary Public 
My commission expires: _______________ 

 
Lot 6, Maple Hill 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Sandra Sawyer 
 

 
Sworn to and Subscribed before me this ____ 
day of ______________, 2022. 
 
____________________________________ 
Notary Public 
My commission expires: _______________ 

 
Lot 7, Maple Hill 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Julie Morgan 
 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
James Morgan 
 

 
Sworn to and Subscribed before me this ____ 
day of ______________, 2022. 
 
____________________________________ 
Notary Public 
My commission expires: _______________ 
 
Sworn to and Subscribed before me this ____ 
day of ______________, 2022. 
 
____________________________________ 
Notary Public 
My commission expires: _______________ 



 

Page 7 of 8 
 

 
Lot 8, Maple Hill 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Gary Gravitt, Jr. 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Katelyn Haley Seabolt Gravitt 
 

 
Sworn to and Subscribed before me this ____ 
day of ______________, 2022. 
 
____________________________________ 
Notary Public 
My commission expires: _______________ 
 
 
Sworn to and Subscribed before me this ____ 
day of ______________, 2022. 
 
____________________________________ 
Notary Public 
My commission expires: _______________ 

 
Lot 9, Maple Hill 
 
 
____________________________________ 
MCH SFR Property Owner 1, LLC 
By: ________________________________ 
 

 
Sworn to and Subscribed before me this ____ 
day of ______________, 2022. 
 
____________________________________ 
Notary Public 
My commission expires: _______________ 

 
Lot 10, Maple Hill 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Allison Cumbo 
 

 
Sworn to and Subscribed before me this ____ 
day of ______________, 2022. 
 
____________________________________ 
Notary Public 
My commission expires: _______________ 

 
Lot 11, Maple Hill 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Daniel Edward Ingram 
 

 
Sworn to and Subscribed before me this ____ 
day of ______________, 2022. 
 
____________________________________ 
Notary Public 
My commission expires: _______________ 

 
Lot 12, Maple Hill 
 
 
____________________________________ 
MHDR, LLC 
By: ________________________________ 
 

 
Sworn to and Subscribed before me this ____ 
day of ______________, 2022. 
 
____________________________________ 
Notary Public 
My commission expires: _______________ 



 

Page 8 of 8 
 

 
Lot 13, Maple Hill 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Jeff Knudsen, Jr. 
 

 
Sworn to and Subscribed before me this ____ 
day of ______________, 2022. 
 
____________________________________ 
Notary Public 
My commission expires: _______________ 

 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   MAIN STREET PARK PAVILION RENTAL INCREASE 

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  04/18/2022    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
 

   TO APPROVE AN INCREASE IN THE RENTAL RATES FOR THE PAVILIONS AT MAIN STREET 
PARK AS OUTLINED BELOW:  

 

• $75.00 FOR COUNTY RESIDENTS 
• $100.00 FOR NON-COUNTY RESIDENTS 

 
      

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

• RENTAL FEES ORIGINALLY ESTABLISHED BY COUNCIL AT THE 03/15/2021 MEETING 
AT $35 FOR DAWSON COUNTY RESIDENTS AND $60 FOR NON-COUNTY RESIDENTS 

• INCREASE WARRANTED DUE TO DEMAND ON OFFICE STAFF TO COORDINATE 
RENTALS AND FOR PUBLIC WORKS STAFF WHO MAINTAIN THE CLEANLINESS OF THE 
PAVILIONS ONCE RENTED 

• RENTAL FEES ARE FOR ALL DAY RENTALS 
• 2 OF THE 3 PAVILLIONS WILL HAVE ELECTRICITY AVAILABLE 
• FEES ARE IN LINE WITH SURROUNDING PAVILION RENTALS 

    

   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 

APPROVE, DENY, OR TABLE 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Robin Gazaway, Finance Administrator______ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #  15    
 

 

 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT (ARPA) GRANT FUNDS DESIGNATION 

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  04/18/2022    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
 

   TO DETERMINE AND APPROVE THE DESIGNATION OF WHICH CATEGORY TO ASSIGN THE 
$1.2M ARPA GRANT FUNDS 

 
 
      

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
ALLOWABLE:  PUBLIC HEALTH, COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT, PREMIUM PAY, REVENUE 
STANDARD ALLOWANCE OR WATER/SEWER INFRASTRUCTURE 
 
    

   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 

       

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDS DESIGNATING THE REVENUE STANDARD ALLOWANCE.  IT WOULD 
ALLOW THE MAXIMUM AMOUNT FOR FLEXIBILITY TO USE THESE FUNDS WITHIN THE 
ALLOWABLE USES. 
   
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Robin Gazaway, Finance Administrator______ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #  16    
 

 

 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   IMPACT FEE STUDY DISCUSSION 

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  04/18/2022    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
 

   TO DISCUSS CONSIDERATION OF DOING AN IMPACT FEE STUDY FOR THE CITY 
 
 
      

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
 
 
 
 
    

   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 

 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Mike Eason, Mayor______ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #  17    
 

 

 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION: TEMPORARY MORATORIUM ON 

ISSUANCE OF DEVELOPMENT AND BUILDING PERMITS 
   

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  04/18/2022    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
 

   TO CONSIDER APPROVING RESOLUTION CONCERNING A TEMPORARY MORATORIUM ON THE 
ISSUANCE OF DEVELOPMENT AND BUILDING PERMITS 

 
 
      

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
 
 
 
 
    

   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 

 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Mike Eason, Mayor______ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #  18    
 

 

 



 

1 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA TO ENACT A 
TEMPORARY, EMERGENCY MORATORIUM ON THE ISSUANCE OF 
DEVELOPMENT PERMITS AND BUILDING PERMITS WITHIN THE 

JURISDICTIONAL LIMITS OF THE CITY OF DAWSONVILLE DURING A STUDY 
OF DEVELOPMENT IMPACTS AND CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS; TO PROVIDE 
FOR EXCEPTIONS; TO PROVIDE FOR SEVERABILITY; TO PROVIDE FOR AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Dawsonville, Georgia is a Georgia Municipal Corporation which provides 
planning and zoning, as well as enforcement of building codes and regulations as a qualified local 
government; 

WHEREAS, the City of Dawsonville directly provides, provides via contractual arrangement, 
and/or regulates, inter alia, the following services, all of which are and will continue to be 
impacted by residential and commercial development: road and street construction or maintenance, 
solid waste management, water supply and distribution, wastewater treatment, stormwater 
collection and disposal, public safety, and recreational facilities; 

WHEREAS, local governments, pursuant to Chapter 71 of Title 36 of the Official Code of Georgia 
Annotated, may consider and adopt development impact fees which are imposed upon 
development as a condition of development approval to pay for a proportionate share of the cost 
of system improvements needed to serve new growth and development;  

WHEREAS, such development impact fees may be collected at the time of the issuance of a 
development permit or a building permit, depending upon the particular purpose of the fee; 

WHEREAS, the City of Dawsonville is starting the process of studying and developing a system 
of development impact fees pursuant to Chapter 71 of Title 36 of the Official Code of Georgia, 
Annotated; 

WHEREAS, there are tracts of developed land which could be redeveloped, and undeveloped land 
in the City of Dawsonville which if developed, or if rezoned and developed, could create 
significant impacts on the services, facilities, and infrastructure of the City of Dawsonville, to 
include but not necessarily be limited to significant improvement costs as a result of the 
development; 

WHEREAS, a review of development fee impact ordinances and studies related to the same 
confirms that residential development and usage creates the greatest impact on local government 
facilities, infrastructure, and services; 

WHEREAS, the City of Dawsonville, pursuant to its police power, is authorized to enact 
ordinances to further and protect the health, safety, welfare and morals of the public; 

WHEREAS, given the potentially significant impact to the services, facilities and infrastructure 
needs and demands of developing or redeveloping property, the City of Dawsonville has 
determined that it is reasonable and necessary, in order to protect the health, safety, welfare and 



 

2 
 

morals of the public, to enact a temporary, emergency moratorium on development and building 
permits in the City of Dawsonville; 

WHEREAS, the enactment of a temporary, emergency moratorium is a valid exercise of the police 
power of the City of Dawsonville in order to preserve the status quo while it considers a new 
ordinance; 

WHEREAS, there are significant developments which could have a large impact on the City of 
Dawsonville’s provision of services if Development Impact Fees are not adopted; 

WHEREAS, the emergency measures contained herein are limited in scope and duration, to 
provide time for the City of Dawsonville to consider the adoption of a longer moratorium while 
considering whether to adopt Impact Fees;  

AND WHEREAS, the moratorium, as described herein, is found by the City of Dawsonville to be 
an appropriate, reasonably necessary, not unduly oppressive, and narrowly tailored exercise of the 
City of Dawsonville’s police power. 

NOW, THEREFORE, premises considered, be it ordained by the Council of the City of 
Dawsonville, as follows: 

Section 1. There is hereby enacted a moratorium on (a) the acceptance of applications for, or 
the issuance of land development permits (including land disturbance permits) as well as 
(b) the acceptance of applications for, or the issuance of building permits, within the 
corporate limits of the City of Dawsonville, Georgia, for properties which are in the 
following zoning districts: 
 

a. RA: Restricted Agricultural 
b. R-1: Restricted Single Family Residential 
c. R-2: Single Family Residential 
d. R-3: Single Family Residential 
e. R-6: Multiple-Family Residential 
f. R3R: Manufactured Home Subdivision District 
g. RMM: Residential Manufactured/Moved 
h. RMHT: Manufactured Housing Temporary District 
i. RPC: Residential Planned Community 
j. PUD: Planned Unit Development 
k. PCS: Planned Conservation Subdivision 
l. RCT: Residential Cottage 
m. AP: Annexed Property 

 
Section 2. The moratoria described in § 1, above, shall expire on the earlier of: 

a. the passage of thirty (30) days from the date this Resolution is adopted by the 
Council of the City of Dawsonville; 

b. the defeat or adoption of an ordinance establishing development impact fees 
pursuant to Chapter 71 of Title 36 of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated; 



 

3 
 

c. a subsequent vote of the Council of the City of Dawsonville, Georgia, repealing or 
replacing the moratoria described in this Resolution. 
 

Section 3. The moratoria described in § 1, above, shall not apply to: 
a. any development or project where there is an active Land Disturbance Permit in 

place on or before the date of the passage of this Resolution, however, if the Land 
Disturbance Permit expires without being renewed before its expiration, then the 
moratoria described above shall apply to any future issuance of a Land Disturbance 
Permit for the same tract of land. 

b. any building site where there is an active Building Permit in place on or before the 
date of the passage of this Resolution, however, if the Building Permit expires 
without being renewed before its expiration, then the moratoria described above 
shall apply to any future issuance of a Building Permit for the same Building Site. 

c. any development or building site which does not fit into the exceptions identified 
in § 3(a) or (b), but for which the applicant for the development and/or building 
permit executes an irrevocable commitment that it will remit, in full, any 
development impact fee within thirty (30) days after the passage of an ordinance 
establishing development impact fees pursuant to Chapter 71 of Title 36 of the 
Official Code of Georgia, Annotated.  The Development Impact fee assessed 
pursuant to this exception shall be such as is established pursuant to any adopted 
ordinance, and if no ordinance is adopted then no fee shall be assessed. 
 

i. In the event that an applicant seeks an exception pursuant to § 3(c) of this 
Resolution, if the applicant fails to make the committed to payment of a 
development impact fee within the time required, then the permit issued 
(and any related permits or certificates, including but not limited certificates 
of occupancy) shall be revoked, instanter, by operation of law without the 
necessity of any further action by the City of Dawsonville or any of its 
departments or employees. 
 

ii. In the event of a revoked permit or certificate pursuant to § 3(c)(i) of this 
Resolution, the unpaid development impact fee must be paid before any 
development or building permit or related certificate may issue for the site 
or development in question. 
 

Section 4. Severability.  If any section, provision or clause of any part of this resolution shall 
be declared invalid or unconstitutional, or if the provisions of any part of this resolution as 
applied to any particular situation or set of circumstances shall be declared invalid or 
unconstitutional, such invalidity shall not be construed to affect the portions of this 
resolution not so held to be invalid, or the application of this resolution to other 
circumstances not so held to be invalid.  It is hereby declared as the intent that this 
resolution would have been adopted had such invalid portion not been included herein 
 



 

4 
 

Section 5. Repealer.  All laws and parts of laws in conflict with this resolution are hereby 
repealed. 
 
 

Section 6. Effective Date.  This resolution shall be effective the day following its passage by 
the Council of the City of Dawsonville, the health, safety, welfare, and general morality of 
the City of Dawsonville demanding it. 
 

 

SO ADOPTED AND RESOLVED by the City Council of Dawsonville, Georgia, this _____ day 
of ________________________, 2022. 

     MAYOR AND DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 

 

By:        
       Mike Eason, Mayor 

 
 
       
Caleb Phillips, Council Member, Post 1 

        
             
              
       William Illg, Council Member, Post 2 
ATTESTED TO BY:           
        
              
______________________    John Walden, Council Member, Post 3 
Beverly Banister, City Clerk 
        

____________________________________ 
       Mark French, Council Member, Post 4 
    
 
        

 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                       STAFF REPORT: CITY MANAGER    

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  04/18/2022       
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
     TO PROVIDE PROJECT UPDATES  

 
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

 
    SEE ATTACHED OUTLINE  
     
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
      
      
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY:  Bob Bolz, City Manager    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #     19     
 

 

 



CITY MANAGER REPORT 

APRIL 12 FOR APRIL 18, 2022 MEETING 

 
Administrative Offices for Utility and Public Works: The building is dried in and the plumbing installation well 
underway. 
 
COVID: We currently have no employees out on COVID quarantine. We wait to see what happens with the BA.2 
Omicron variant as people move indoors during hot weather. 
 
ARPA Funding: We received $3 million grant for the wastewater treatment plant. The $500,000.00 for the well was 
denied and we await word on grants for the airport and the museum. 
 
SPLOST VII Collections: We anticipate starting to receive SPLOST VII funds in May – June after the county gets the 
first $8.5 million. We are preparing potential projects for recommendation. 
 
Friday Night Food Truck Night: This year’s schedule has been set and the dates are: 

• May 6th 
• June 3rd 
• July 1st 
• August 5th 

• September 9th 
• October 7th 
• November 19th - Christmas Tree Lighting & 

Parade
 
Shade for Main Street Park: The City Manager and the Public Works Director continue to get cost estimates for shade 
for the park. We are now researching and awaiting prices on retrofitting existing poles that will be cheaper to install. 
We look forward to getting those quotes. 
 
Main Street Park Additions & SPLOST VII: Staff are developing plans and getting cost estimates for a basketball 
court, an addition to the skate park, pickle ball courts, and stage opportunities for Main Street Park utilizing SPLOST 
VII funds. 
 
Main Street Park Disc Golf: A nine-hole disc golf course has been laid out and we are researching cost estimates. 
 
Classic Car Auction: As a fund raiser, the GRHOF has a Greater Atlanta Auto Auction scheduled for Saturday, April 
23rd starting at 11 AM. They expect over 125 classic cars and 1,000 people in attendance. Mark your calendars this 
should be a special event 
 
ARC Grant – Downtown Strategic Plan:  The City Manager met face-to-face with Patrick Larson from GMRC to 
discuss the narrative preparation for the next level of the ARC grant application process. The meeting went well, and 
we are excited about the possibility. We are seeking letters of support and commitment for the development of a 
strategic plan from business, other partners, and will be seeking the same from the City Council and the DDA. As 
previously discussed, it will be a split of $70,000.00 paid for by the ARC grant and $30,000.00 from the city using 
SPLOST VII funds. Staff had a virtual video conference with Kathy Papa from DCA, Anaka Woodruff from ARC, and 
Patrick Larson from GMRC regarding grants for downtown needs. In meetings, with all of the above, it became more 
obvious that we need to fund a position as soon as possible to serve as Downtown Development Manager or some 
like title. The City Manager is drafting a job description in hopes that a funding source can be identified. 
 
 



GA Rural Water Association Backflow Prevention Class: A number of staff took an intense, week-long backflow 
prevention class taught here at city facilities the first week in April. The next step requires those taking the class to pass 
a certification test taught in Duluth.  
 
Water First Program: Staff met with Chuck Butterfield, formerly of GBT now with CEC. He is drafting a proposal to 
prepare the city’s involvement in the Water First Program.  
 
Staff Time Off: Several staff took some well-deserved time off in conjunction with the Dawson County Schools Spring 
Break the first week in April. City Hall will be closed for the Good Friday holiday on April 15th.  
 
Commission Meeting: There will be no Planning Commission or Historic Preservation Commission Meetings in April 
due to no agenda items. 
 
Blood Drive: Please come donate some desperately needed blood at the city-sponsored blood drive held in the City 
Hall parking lot on April 19th.  
 
Construction Proposal – Winner’s Circle, GRHOF: Director Cindy Elliott is working with a forensic structural 
engineer to determine what can and cannot be built with regards to structural integrity should a pavilion be built over 
the Winners Circle. 
 
Allen Street Sidewalk Extension: This project, funded out of SPLOST VI is complete except for some punch list 
items. The contractor that built the new sidewalk extending Allen Street to the park and City Hall had their striping 
contractor do some work; unfortunately, the work they did was not supposed to be done. The crew came in and ground 
down the one-way errors and painted a walkway on the road in the ally next to City Hall. Neither were supposed to be 
done. At Summit’s expense, the company will have to return, repaint the arrows and hash the walkway with thermo-
paint. 
 
Fuel Costs: We continue to closely monitor fuel costs. 
 
Public Meeting for WWTP: As part of the USDA application process, on April 21st at 1:00 PM GBT will host a required 
meeting regarding the WWTP application. 
 
GA State Patrol Recruitment Event: The City Manager met with SFC Bradshaw about a recruitment event they want 
to have at the city on Wednesday, May 11th. It would run from 10:00 AM – 2:00 PM with troopers and recruiters available 
to talk about career with GSP. They will have a variety of cars and equipment on display at the Farmer’s Market and 
hope to land a helicopter on the grassy area in front of City Hall or the parking lot. They will serve hotdogs for people 
attending the event. 
 
Deputy Program: Jacob Champion has replaced Kyle Bailey. Kyle went to CID and Jacob came to us from CID. Vic 
Gazaway will be transferring to an SRO position in the future. 
 
Comprehensive Plan: It is almost time to begin reviewing our city’s comprehensive plan last completed in 2018. This 
process should start in July. We are working with Adam Hazell of GMRC planning to begin this process and discussing 
update of our CIE as part of that plan. 
 
Old Cemetery to National Register of Historic Places: Pre-pandemic, the city was working on getting the cemetery 
listed on the National Register of Historic Places. The process got put on hold due to the pandemic. Staff are working 
with Joe Rothwell at GMRC to get this project re-started. 
 



Customer Service Improvements in City Hall: Excellence is a moving target! In our constant striving to improve our 
level of customer service, we plan to implement some modifications in City Hall to better serve our customers. These 
modifications have been discussed for years and plans were in place just prior to Covid. Frequently, multiple customers 
will be waiting in line for service at our payment window. To address this, we will be cutting a second customer window 
in the lobby wall. Office space will be rearranged, and we will end up with two, staff payment windows. We plan to cut 
the hole on April 15 and 16 when we are closed.  
 
Roundabout at Old Courthouse: We received a plan from GDOT that was forwarded to the CC/M regarding safety 
improvements at the roundabout that circles the old courthouse. We are excited about the prospect of this project as 
the planning and design has been going on for several years, including Public Works Director Hansard and City 
Manager Bolz participated in a safety study and evaluation over two years ago and considerable planning and feedback 
since then. 
 
Leak Adjustments: 1 Leak Adjustment this month. 

Water   $538.79 Sewer   $865.54  Total     $1,404.33 

Calendar YTD     $9,149.61  



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                       STAFF REPORT: FINANCE ADMINISTRATOR    

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  04/18/2022       
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
     TO PRESENT FUND BALANCE AND ACTIVITY THROUGH MARCH 31, 2022  

 
 

 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

 
    SEE ATTACHED FINANCIAL REPORTS  
     
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
      
      
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY:  Robin Gazaway, Finance Administrator    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   20   
 

 

 








	1. 04.18.2022 AGENDA City Council Regular Meeting and Work Session
	7. Executive Summary For Agenda Items CONSENT AGENDA
	7a. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items MINUTES
	7a. 2 03.21.2022 MINUTES City Council Regular Meeting
	03.21.2022 MINUTES City Council Regular Meeting.pdf
	03.21.2022 Executive Session Affidavit.pdf

	7b. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items GMA CONVENTION
	7c. 1 Executive Summary PRO PUMP
	7c. 2 2022-3-16 Proposal to City of Dawsonville for Pro Pump PM Services (002)
	7d. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items MUSEUM LEASE
	7d. 2 2022 History Museum Lease_FINAL 03242022
	2. Lease Term. This Lease shall commence on January 1, 2022, for the period of twelve months (“Lease Term”) terminating on December 31, 2022. The Lease Term is NOT subject to an automatic renewal.
	3. Rent. Lessee covenants and agrees to pay Lessor a rent amount as rent for the Museum Space during the Lease Term which will be as follows:
	A. Lessee will pay to Lessor Base Rent in the amount of $250.00 (two hundred and fifty and no/100 dollars) per month for the Museum Space.  Rent will be due and payable by the 5th day of every month, and if not actually received by the City by the 10t...

	8. 1  Executive Summary For Agenda Items EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION
	9. 1 Executive Summary PROCLAMATIONS
	9. 2 Proclamation
	10. 1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ZA C2200130 Public Hearing 3-21-22
	10. 2 ZA C2200130 MCC Packet_Redacted
	11. 1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ANX-ZA C2100043 MCC 1-11-22
	11. 2 ANXC210043
	10. 2 ANX-ZA C2100043 MCC Letter 1-11-22.pdf
	10. 3 ANX-ZA C2100043 Timeline 12-7-21.pdf
	10. 4 22-1-5 Recorded Plat Perimeter Rd - Book00087Page0018.pdf
	10. 5 Minor 2 New Legal 12-17-21.pdf
	10. 6. 20210928155819541_Redacted.pdf

	12. 1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ZA C2200119 Public Hearing 3-7-22
	12. zac2200119
	20. 2 ZA_C2200119_SDH_COLEMAN TRACT (1).pdf
	ZA C2200119 Packet (002) 39.pdf
	ZA C2200119 Packet (002) 38.pdf
	ZA C2200119 Packet (002) 37.pdf

	13. 1 Executive Summary ARC GRANT
	13. 2 Letter of commitment to ARC for matching funds 0422
	14. 1 Executive Summary MAPLE HILL DR DETEN POND AGMNT
	14. 2 AGREEMENT RELATED TO STORM WATER INFRASTRUCTURE MAINTENANCE EXPENSES
	15. 1 FACILITY RENTAL FEE SCHEDULE
	16. 1 ARPA GRANT FUNDS DESIGNATION
	17. 1 IMPACT FEE STUDY 
	18. 1 RESOLUTION - MORATORIUM
	18. 2 Emergency Moratorium Resolution
	19. 1  Executive Summary For Agenda Items CITY MANAGER
	19. 2 04182022 CITY MANAGER REPORT
	20. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items FINANCE ADMINISTRATOR
	20. 2 Finance Reports



